
H0-166 
ST. MARKS 1874 

Overtures begun in 1857 resulted in a resolution in 1872 to build a church in 
the Highland area of Howard County. St. Mark's was constructed in 1874, a one 
story Gothic revival white frame church three bays wide and four bays deep 
with a high pitched gable roof with open belfry crowned by a conical roof 
located at the apex of the south gable. 

The building features a central Gothic wood paneled double door with 
gabled roof ertrance portico supported by posts, Gothic stained glass lancet 
windows with green shutters and tiffany stained glass bull's eye above the 
portico. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

St. Mark's Episcq>al Church in 1t:Jward C'.oonty is located en the northwest oomer of 
the intersecticn of Mal:yland Rwte 216 and Hall's Slop Road. 'llle ceuetezy is behind 
the dlurch and a rectory stands en the southwest oo.mer of the intersecticn. 'llle latter, 
a new building, is not included in this naninaticn. 

'lhe chm:dl is a ooe-sto:cy carpenter Gothic structure three bays wide and four deep 
with a chancel extensicm en the north. A sacristy was added to the west side of the 
chanoel. 'llle roof is a steeply pitched gable that overllangs at either end; it is 
echoed by the roofs of the chancel and the entrance parch. 'llle frane bni lding is 
covered with board and batten siding and sits en a rubble stale foundatien. It has a 
small belf:cy on the roof peak at the south end, and the brick fumace flue rises fran 
the north end of the east slope of the roof. 

'lhe south facade has a central:: entrance flanked by blo lancet windows. 'lbe door 
is a pointed arched one with blo paneled leaves protected by a frama entrance parch 
with a t'OCiJen cross at its peak. 'Ille porch is supported by blo chamfered pests and 
blo pilasters deoorated with scrolled brackets. 'llle gable of the porch cxntains stick 
TNOrk; there are 'WOOden railings en either side of the porch and a flight of five steps 
leads up to it. 

'llle windows ai either side of the door have double-hung stained glass sash and 
louvered lancet-shaped shutters. Above the entrance is a small round Tiffany wi.ndcM 
with a dove in it. 

'Ille east and west facades have four windows like those oo the saith: lancet with 
dod>le-hung, stained glass sash and louvered shutters. 

'lhe chancel covers three-quarters of the oorth end of the churoh. Also board and 
batten sided, it has three nan'OW' lancet w.i.ndcMs in the north face. 'lhe central one 
is taller than the others; all three have dod>le-hmig, stained glass sash. '!he 
sacristy is a vezy ~ aCditien sided with board and batten and having a hipped roof. 
It has a stained glass window with louvered shutters en the north and a door sheltered 
by the overhanging roof en the south. 

'llle nave of the church has a central aisle with the original fixed pews painted 
'\tbite with the trim mpainted en either side. Several pews face ""1e8t .fran tae £rent 
of the east side, beb1een the caigzegation and the altar. 'lhe floor of the dlaix::el is 
tlu:ee steps above the floor of the nave. 'lhe ceiling of the cbanoel is ardled; the 
chancel opening is frcmed with a wooden IIDlding like that around the windais and is 
flanked by blo plaster p:rojectians, ooe of lAilich oontains the fumace flue mile the 
other is apparently decorative cnly for balance. 

A parish house built in 1955 is situated to the east and behind the chun::h. Built 
of cinder block and painted white, it is a low, Ir-shaped structure that dces not detract 
fran the appearance of the church. 

'lhe cerete:cy dates fn:m the oonstruction of the church and has been expanded 
several tines (see histo:cy) • 
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St. Mal'.:k's Episcx:.pal Church is Hicjtl.and, Howard Co.mty, is a typical exauple 
of the snail frane churches built in the rural areas of Mal:yland in the 1870's. 
'1hese wem not ardlitect-designed structures, but the designs cane fran pattem 
books or fran other nearl:ly churdles in this carpenter Gothic style. St. Mar 's is 
ooe of the latter, st£POSedl;y insplled by an Episcqal Church near Ellicott City. 

St. Marlc's z:erains largely unaltered :fran its original ~ance '1tilen built. 
Several additions have been Jiade but they in no way d:>scure the dlurch building. 
Other alterations, oo. the interior, are minimal and are the result of gifts to the 
church. 

'llle dlurch was oaist.nci:ed by the oongregatioo. and reoognized by the Episcx:.pal 
-1urch at the zequest of the famding fanilies, 'Who ~ IOOStly fcmrers in the 

.Lea. 

--
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- Steady progress was nede thereafter t.cMard carpletioo of work oo the church. 
'!he 12 by 14 foot recessed chancel was added, the 10 by 14 foot rcbing roan at­
tadled, the fralt portico SllllIDUilted by a cross, the church painted inside and out, 
and rew walnut trimred cypress pews to seat 120 persons installed. Bishop 
Pinckney gave the beautiful walnut altar now in the parish house, which had stood 
in the old church of the Ascensim in washingtcn where he had at ooe tine been 
mctor. 'lhe triple stained glass window over the altar was given by a lady fran a 
Baltinore parish. Nx>ut half of the one-acre lot was laid off in lots and set 
apart under the supervi.sioo of a ccmni..ttee of the Vestcy for a burial ground, en­
closed by the barbed wire fence on iron posts set in granite lrhl.ch still surrounds 
it. In the fall of 1882, the church as it now stands was cmpleted in all 
essential details and was all paid for. It stands as an excellent and pleasing 
exaaple of what is called "Rural Gothic" or carpenter Gothic. It was consecrated on 
Novenber 30, 1883 by Bishop Paret, who succeeded Bishop Pinckney. 

In 1890 Dr. Hutt.al submitted his resignatioo because of failing health. He 
died the following year, and the Fev. William Turner foll.owed him as rector. In 
1892 a rectmy was built far him in Highland ai the Daytal R:>ad. 'Ibis was in 
continual use mtil 1951, loihen it was sold. 

Fran tine to tine through the years various inprovenElts have been made to 
the church. Mem:>rial stained glass win.dcMs were donated by several families. 
'!he belfJ:y, the cushiaied kneelers, the cross over the altar, ccmmmion and 
offering services, flower vases, baptismal font, pulpit, etc. are all IDE!lDri.al 
gifts nade fran tine to tine. HaI:dioiood flooring and cm:peting were installed. 
Vllerl electricity became available, the original kerosene 1anps were left in place 

~- but ccnverted to electric lights. When oil burners became available, a full cellar 
was dug under part of the church and a central heating furnace installed to re­
place the bvo wocd burning stoves which had stood in the Northwest and Northeast 
coxners of the church. other minor inprovenents, such as installing nnming water 
in the vestnent roan, were added. But the basis st:ructmE of the church remains 
essentially unaltered. 

Additiooal. parcels of land were donated by Sanuel Harding in 1881 and 1898, 
Mr. Pue again in 1913, and Mr. & Mrs. Scheidt in 1957. '1he church grounds now 
total about three acres. In 1954 Mrs. Myerly provided the funds for the ccn­
structioo of the parish hall in mem:>:cy of her husband. In 1958 or thereabouts, 
the churdl purchased the half acre lot awosite the church at the so~t 
earner of the road intersection, and in 1960 purchased the ooe acre tract ad­
jacent to it on the South. In 1964 Mrs. Ma:cy Clark Ibrsey bequeathed funds and 
securities loihich pemitted the church to CCl'lStmct on this lot a IIDdem rectmy 
as well as to establish a capital fund, the incate fran which helps support the 
church. Q1 this point it shoold be ooted that in fcmner years the church owned a 
frane cottage on Highland Road just west of the Highland crossroads, liihich it 
used as a mcto:cy. 'Ihe house was withoo.t m:::rlenl ccnveniences of any kind, and 
since Olrist Church also had a recto:cy and was new sharing pastors with St. 
Marlt's, it became expedient to dispose of this house. Part of the land was sold 
in 194 7, and the house in 1951. 

With the receipt of the Ibrsey l:>eqlEst, St. Mark's felt that after many years 
it was finally in a positioo to operate fully on its own. Negotiations were 

- therefore entered into with Olrist Olurch looking toward each church having its 
own full tine rector. 'lllese negotiations were cmpleted tCJwan1 the end of 1964, 
and St. Mark's first full-tine rector tock office in Februa:cy 1965. 
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In 1972 a new electric organ was purdlased for the church with funds fran 
the Darsey beq\Est. 

St. Mark's started. as a strictly rural churdl serving a fanning cx:mmmity, 
and remained such until abcut the beginning of tile seooIXl ~rld War. 'lhe area 
surrounding the c:hurdl is still rural to a considerable degree, with a m.mber of 
faDllS still operating. But the oongregation can no longer be said to be that of 
a fanning cx:mwnity. Qtl.y a very few of the original fourmng fann families are 
still nenbers, and only cne or bvc> of these are actually fanning. M:>st of the 
church nenbers are relatively new residents in the area - that is, since the war. 
AnDng them are professional :people, skilled workrcen, business and clerical :people, 
goverrment enployees, teachers; and others, ICDSt of 'Whan a:mrute sare distance 
eadl day to places of ESiploynent. 

Since its founding, the congregation of St. Mark's has remained abcut the 
sane size. Iecent devel.cpients in the OOllilty point toward an imninent increase, 
especially of younger families with childzen, a m:nber of l'vtlan have joined the 
CC11gregation in the last several years. With t:m advent of the new town of 
Colunbia in 1968, the oounty is rapidly be<xJnj ng w:banized. 'lhus, while the 
ilmediate surroundings of the church are zcmed in such manner as to insw:e rel.a­
ti vel y sparse develc:prent for many years, the i.npact of Colmbia and other sub­
divians not too distant will double the oounty population in the next 10 to 15 
years. St. Mark's can therefOJ:e look foz:ward to a substantial increase in~ 
nn.micants. Maant:ine the general abia>phere of the church remains that of a 
friendly, small town, alm:>st family group. 

Catpiled for the Centennial Celebratim of the Building of the Cllurch, 
Novenber 17, 1974, by z.Elvin E. Scheidt 
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0 Altered 
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(Check One) .. 

00 Uncltered 
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0 Deteriorated 

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT> ~D ORIGINAL (It known) PHYSICAL APP"EARANCE 

0 Ruins 0 ·Unexposed 

(C(heck One) 

0 Moved Ii) Originol Site 

Thjs wooden structure is located on the south west corner of the in­
tersection of Route 216 and Halls Shop Road. St. Mark's is a one story 
Gothic revival building three bays wide and four bays deep with a high 
pitched gable roof, with open belfry crowned by a conical roof located at 
the apex of the south gable. Gabled and hip roofed appendages are lotated 
on the west wall to serve as the sacristy. A covered entrance door is lo­
cated on the south w~ll of the appendage. 

The east wall contains a central Gothic wood paneled double door with 
gabled roof wooden entrance portico supported by posts.am wall pi ]asters. A 

wooden cross is located at the apex of the roof .. A tiffany stained glass 
bull 1 s eye with a central dove dec;orates the·q:>per east wall. Gothic stained gl ss 
windows flank either s,ide_pf ~he.entrance door. All fenestration is Gothic 
with double hung sashes and green shutters. There is a .. one story cinder 
block Parish Hall located north of the church three bays wide and five bays 
deep with south wing. A seven lite transom crONns the wood paneled double 
doors of each of the twc;> sou'tl't' ~rHran'ces; 'fo'ur· cement steps lead to an ope 
gable roofed porch which leads to the east south entrance. 
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An' 1.idditicinal architectural feature of the church are the scrolled Z 

brackets which hold the supporting posts and pilasters of the east portico. "' 
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The area of significance of this building lies in its arch-
i~ecture. According to Mrs. Marshall T. Hardlng·in her mimeographed 
paper, "A history of St. Mark's Church,,.Queen Caroline Parish", the church 

was built in 187~. Constructed of wood in the three bay, central 
entrance plan, the church rs representative of a major architectural 
group:i .e. the little countfy go.thii:: ch.urch. Churches of this kind were 
in use in HONard County from the early 19th century. The church has 
received little alteration and retains almost all of its orig.i'na(~hrk • 
By 1882, chancel and vestry room and the south portico had been added 
as well as a triple stained glass window over the alter. 

Approximately half of the church yard was laid off in lots and 
set apart as a burial ground, which has been enlarged four times. Tn_ 
1955the parish house was constructed, which can serve as a meeting 
house for the corrmunity. 

The leasers of the community were very often the leaders of the 
church. An examination of the composition of the vestry reveals this 
fact. It is difficult to access the humanitarian out reach of St. Marks 

Located on land which was once a part of Snowden's Third Addition 
of \tis Manor 

St. Marks significance inherently lies in the area of religion. Christ 
hurch, Quilford was the first episcopal church in Howard County, then the 
~pper part of Ann Arundel. It served the district as a Chapel of Ease for 
~t. Anne's Church, Annapolis. As the population in upper Arundel increased 
here was pressure to create another parish, separate and apart from Queen 

.~nne's Parish, An~apolis. The old Brick Church became Christ Church, mother 
~hurch of Queen Caroline Parish and as population centers developed in 
~oward County, Chapels of Ease such as St. Marks and St. John's were created 

The importance of the church in the early days of Maryland lay not only 
n the field of religion but in the social and humanitaria~ fields. The chur h 
erved as a social focal point and the vestry as a kind of governing body 
or the community. Improper social behavior was censored and injunctions 
ssued against individuals for improper behavior. 

PS- 7011 



-/~Christ Church, Qui lford.v 11Vestry Notes'' 
arding, Mrs. Marshall T. 11A History of St. Mark's Church". Highland 1963 

Interview with Mr. Marshall T. Harding, Jr. member of St. Mark's Church, 
Highland, Md. June 22, 1976 

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES 

DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY 

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES 

0 DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY 

-.-~~~~~~~~--.~~~~~~~~--lRr-~~~~~-o-F_L_E_s_s_T_H_ATN~T~E-M~A~C_R~E~S~--~~~4 
CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE 

Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds 

NW 0 0 

NE 0 0 

SE 0 0 

0 0 

APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY: 

LATITUDE 

Degrees Minutes Seconds 
0 

Acreage Justification: Please see tax map #40, 
Parcel 169, 308/237 
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Significance - Continued 

As early as 1857 residents of this area of Howard Collllty desired a church. 
On September 15, 1872 a service was held in the woods of Mr. Simpson by the 
Reverend Thomas Duncan, Rector of St. Bartholomews Episcopal Church, Mont­
gomery Collllty. The meeting which followed resulted in a resolution to build 
a new church here and a donation of one acre of land was made, whose deed was 
executed in September 1873. 
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